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The three houses at 7100, 7104 and 7108 Delmar Boulevard form a continuous
frontage along the south side of the street from Vassar Avenue west. All
three were designed by Theodore C. Link and tuilt by Merrill Construction
Company beginning in 1911. Although comparable in size, the three houses
are of contrasting designs: the Rand Mansion at 7100 Delmar is an elaborate
exanple of the Georgian Revival, the Niedrinzhaus House at 7104 Delmar is
Tudor Revival, while the Shinkle House at 7108 Delmar displays design
features derived from the French Renaissance, All three fii into the
stylistic category of “the period house,”’ and all have the thoughtful
floorplans and careful detalling which were hallmarks of thelr architect.

The Rand Mansion is marked by a white two-story portico of six Corinthian
columns across the center three bays of iis nine-tay facade. These columns
(visually) support a (cantilevered) full entablature with an exceptionally
wide frieze which continues around the whole house. Thils is surmounted by
a balustrade above the portico and by a brick parapet elsewhere., Above the
portico, the hipped roof has three round-headed dormer windows set in
pilastered, pedimented surrounds. A similar dormer 1s at each end of the
roof, The red brick body of the house is accented with limestone details
in the form of a ground=fleor string course and voussolrs above the first-
floor windows. The center door is set in an elaborate wooden bay that
projects slightly forwaxd from the brick wall, creatling a shallow baleony
in front of the second-floor window. A wooden oriel on the east slde,
second floor, has leaded glass windows, and another leaded window lights
the stair landing at the center of the south elevatlon. Georglan Revival
detailing continues on the interior in the staircase and fireplaces. The
dining room to the right of the entry is divided by a screen of two columns
in the nammer of Robert Adam, and the sunﬁoom in the southeast corner
(apparently remodeled or enclosed in 1934-) has Adamesque details as well.
The third or attic floor i1s finished as a ballroom.

The Niedringhaus House is a two~and-a-half-stery structure with a high-
pitched slate gable roof. It is bullt of dark reddish brown textured brick
1aid in black mortar with recessed joints. Both front and back elevatlons
have two large overhanging half-timbered gables, and this black-stained
wood and white stucco is continued above the first floor on both ends of
the house. A one-and-a-half-story wing at the west end of the main structure
is similarly treated, with gable end to the front. Four brick chimneys
punctuate the roofline, one at the center of the east end, one near the
center rear, one ncar the front of the west end, and one centered in the
front of the winz. Stone surrounds decorate the front windows and door;
the door has a basket~handle arch and is sheltered by a hipped hood. The
conter window atovae this 1s topped by a szall stone-carved coat of arms.

A surprising fecture is the elatorately curled wrought iron embellishing
the poren on iie south face of the wing, A second porch, one story tall
with white wood columns, extends from the cast side of the house.
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Stylistically, the Shinkle House is the hardest to pin down. It combines
stone and brick in a manner reminiscent of French chateaus of the time of
Henry IV (1589-1610), and the stone front porch with its two pairs of
rusticated Tuscan columns especlally recalls the north entrance of the
Luxembourg Palace in Paris (bezun 1615)s ' Seen from above, the house forms
a front~facing Uy the amms have two bays each and the center section five hays,
Between the arms 1s a stone terrace supported in the center three bays by
the columns mentioned above, and in the two end bays by enclosed one-story
elements, all under a continuous entablature., Windows in these enclosed
bays, as well as on the first floor of the arms, are in the form of french
doors with top lightss those in the arms have shallow wrought-iron balconies,
The house is of brown brick with black mortar. Glazed bricks form quoins at
all corners. The windows have stone surrounds, and between floors of the end

« bays are stone spandrels carved with foliate swags on Michelangelesque
panels that end in guttae, Flanking the large center door on the terrace
or second~floor level are ivo similar carved .anels, Spandrels on east and
west ends omit the swags. A wlde frieze and modillioned cornice support the
hipped roof. Chimneys rise from the east side of the house and the east side
of the west arm. On thg west side of the house 15 a small one-story addition,
possibly bullt in 1917,

All three houses have garages to thelr southwest, built of the same
materials as the houses, and all with separate entrances to their dormered
attics. The garage of the Rand Mansicn is approached from Vassar Avenua.
It was designed for three cars, and is finished on the interior wgth white
ceramic tlle., A three-car addition to the east was made in 1928." The
garage of the Niedringhaus House has separate spaces for three cars, while
the Shinkle one has a large door covering two spaces.,

The ground rises on the south side of Delmar Blvd., giving the houses an
elevated position. The lawns of the Niedringhaus and Shinkle houses are
graded into two continucus terraces, but this continuity 1s obscured by the
high hedge and large conifers in front of the N iedringhaus House.

Footnotes
1. Join Poppeliers, S. Allen Chambers and Nancy B. Schwartz, "What Style Is

It? Part Four," Historic Pressxvation, Vol. 29, No. 1 (January-March
1577, Pe 22.
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2. Mary Patricia Holmes, "A History and Evaluation of the St., Louis Unlon
Station, Constructed 1891-18¢4" (unpubl., master's thesis, Washington
University, June 1970), p. 87.

3. Building permit 5910, February 9, 1934.

4, For illustrations, see Anthony Blunt, Art and Architecture in France
1500 - 1700 (Harmondsworth, Englandt Penguin, 1973}, p. 171, etc.

5. Building permit 946, September 26, 1917.
6., Bullding permit 4221, April 17, 1928.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Rand Mansion at 7100 Delmar Blvd. is popularly recognized as the most
imposing, if not the largest, private residence in University City. Itself
& monument to the achleveaents of Frank Rand, it stands in conjunction with
the two houses immediately to 1ts west as a reminder of the encouragement
given by Jackson Johnson to University Clty in its early years. The three
houses are also some of the finest residential work produced by Theodore Link,
who was one of the most outstanding architects in St. louis at the turn of the
century.

Frank Chambless Rand was born in northern Mississippl in 1876.> He cane
to St. Louls in 1898, a few months after his older brother Edgar had Joined
with their first cousins Jackson and Jossph Oscar Johnson and with John Calvin
Roberts to form the Roderts, Johnscn & Rand Shne Co. In a ciiy that had
already spawned twenty-~six shoe and boot factorles,™ the new company rose
to be fifth largest in a period of two years. Its continued success led to
merger in 1911 with the Peters Shoe Company to form the International Shoe
Company. By 1923, it was the largest shoe company in the world,” During
thls period Frank Rand rose from traveling saleszan to president (1916);
from 1930 until his death in 1649 he served as chairpan of the board. A
director of many other coxrporations, Rand also served as president of the
board of trustees of Vanderbilt University in Nashville, and director of
Washington University in St. Louis for twelve years from 1928. He was
nationally recognized for his support of Methodist hospitals and homes and
served as trustee of Barnes Hospital in St. Louls for thirty-two years from
1916, the last twenty~six of them as chairman. In 1931 he and the family of
Jackson Johnson each contributed $150,000 to the construction of the Rand~
Johnson Memorial Building, a part of Barnes Hospital, The permit for his
house on Delnar was issued on July 6, 1911, and there his six children
grew up, Ineluding Edzar Eugene ﬁand. who was to succeed his father as
president of International Shoe.

Rand was no doubt encouraged in his move by Jackson Johnson (1859-1929),
the first president of Roberts, Johnson & Rand, gnd later president (1911)
and toard chalr wn (1915) of Ianternationzl Shoe.” Johnson had been an early
supporter of Edvord Gardosr Lowis, the controversial publishey and founder
of Universziiy City, and ko3 ¢ vud on the first city council. His own
palatial Itallizn Rennizozncs resldsnce ocounied the whols ssuth side of
Delior betwecn Big Bend Blvd. ond Vassar Ave,, just east of Rand's propariy.

7
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Moreover, he was also probably responsible for locating two of his sons-in-law
on the properties just to the west of Rand's. Bullding permits were issued
on October 20, 1911 to Lee I, Niedringhaus for 7104 Delmar and to Bradford
Shinkle for 7108 Delmar.

Niedringhaus {1881-1933) wae a son of Williar F. Niedringhaus, who with
his brother Frederick G. founded the Granite City Steel Company and laid out
the town of Granite City, Illinois, on the American Bottoms opposite St. Llouis.
Lee Niedringhaus worked in the family corporation until the late 1920's, when
he divogced the former Helen Johnson and toock up faxming in west St. Louis
County.

8

Bradford Shinkle (1889-1945) ggue from his home in Covington, Kentucky,
* to marry Florence Johnson in 1910, He worked for International Shoe until
1916, when he formed the Johnson-Stephens and Shinkle Shoe Company with his
brother—in-law Andrew W. Johnson and old friend Howard V.lﬁiephens (Stephens-
daughter Eloise later married Frank Rand's son Norfleet). Shinkle served
as treasurer and later vice-presiiﬁnt of the new firm, and he was also noted
as a sportsman and horse fancier,

Jackson Johnson was thus related to all the owners of the new houses on
Delmar by blood or marriage. He probably was also influential in their
selection of Theodore C, Link as architect. Link had done the booth for
Roberts, Johnson & Rand at the Louisiana Purchase Exposition in 1904, the
house for Oscar Johnson at 38 Portland Place in 1905~07, and the large,
stronzly Sullivanesque headguarters bullding for the shoe company at
Washington Avenue and 15th Street in 1909~10, He was known to Niedringhaus
as well, haviEs done the Niedringhaus Memorial Methodist Church in Granite
City in 1507,

By 1611, Link {1850-1923) had a long and distinguished career behind
him. Born in Germsny and educated in Heldelberg, London, and Paris, he had
come to the United States in 1870 and had worked in several places as an
enginf.r before setting up an architectural partnership in St. louls in
1833, He joined the American Institute of Architects in 1889, the year he
began to practice on his own., Today he is best known for his work in a
Richardsonian veln, including the morunental Unleon Station of 1893, a
National Eistoric Landmarx, and the Second Prestyicrian Church of 18¢3-54, a
close aprroximation of Richardson's Trinity Church in EZostone Ey 1530 Link
had beccne proficient in a much wider variety of styles, notably in the
Beaux Axis Siate C--itol in Jzokson, Mississippi (1501-03), and the




Form No 10-300a

{Hav. 10-74)
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR R TI LI eT
NATIONAL PARK SEARVICE
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORICPLACES |
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM DATEENRTES

THEODORE LINK HISTORIC DISTRICT

CONTINUATION SHEET | iTEM NUMBER 8 PAGE 2

neo-classical St. John's Methodist Church (1902) in the Holy Corners district
of St. louis. He also did one of the gates and several of the houses in
Portland and Westmoreland Places, the exclusive St. Louls residential enclave,
All these bulldings are now listed in the National Register of Historic Places.
The houses on Delmar are comparable to the best work of the period in those
West End private streets. Theilr functional and beautifully detailed plans

show Link at his best.

Jackson Johnson moved to Portland Place in 1916, and about the same time
his splendid house on Delmar was destroyed by fire. His sons-in-law both
followed him to Portland Place by 1920. The Rands remained at 7100 Delmar
until after 1950. William and Nancy O'Connor btought the Rand house about
1961, Finding its upkeep increasingly difficult, they twice requested
the City Plan Commission of Unilversity City to approve a change of uses in
1965 to a women's club, and in 1969.io a provincial residence for a religious
order. Both requests were refused,”™ and today all three houses preserve
their original uses as well as, to a large degree, their original appearance.

Footnotes

1, Blographlical data on Rand is found in John W, Leonard, ed., The Book of
St. louisans (St. louis: The St. Louls Republic, 1906), p. 477; Walter
B. Stevens, St. louis, the Fourth City (Chicago; S. J. Clarke, 1909},
Pe U44-U445; Nettie Hale Rand, Rand-liale Strong and allled families
New York: American Historical Gompany, 1940;, pp. 16~17; obituaries
in the 5t. Iouis Glove Democrat, St. louls Post-Dispatch, and St. Iouis
Star-Times, December 3, 1949.

2. Floyd Calvin Shoemaker, Missouri and Missourians (Chicagos Lewis
Publishing Company, 1943), Vol., II, p. 557.

3. The name of the company was changed to Interco, Inc., in 1966,

4. McCune Gill, The St. Iguis Story (St. Iouls: Libraxy of American Lives,
1952), Vol. III, pp. 958-990.

5« lLeonard, p. 310,

6. Howard McMahan, "An Administrative History of University City" {unpubl,
mster's thesis, University of Kansas, 195%), p. 4. .
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7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

13.

4.

15.

His house is illustrated in Sidney Morse, The Siege of University City
(St. louis: University City Publishing Company, 1912), opposite p. 92;
and in numerous photographs in the archives of the University City Public

Library,

Doxrls Rose Henle Beuttenmuller, "The Granite City Steel Company:s History
of an American Enterprise,” Missouri Historical Society, Bulletin, Vol, X,

No. 2 (January 1954), pp. 135-282.

St. louis Globe Democrat, May 11, 1933 (obituary); undated newspaper
clipping in scrapbook of Harry E. Sprague (1877-1934), Missouri Historical
Soclety, p. 152,

Sprague scrapbook, p. 95.
Missouri Histcrical Society. Bulletin, Vol. IX, No, 2 (January 1953), p. 200.
St., Louls Star-Times, September 21, 1945 (obituary).

Mary Patricia Holmes, "A History and Evaluation of the St. Louls Union
Station, Constructed 1891-1894" (unpudl, master's thesis, Washington
University, June 1970), pp. 136-138.

ibid, ps 73 on. Other sources forxr Link's 1life and work include John
Albury Bryan, Missouri's Contribution to American Architecture (St. Louis:
St. louls Architectural Club, 19285, Pp» 52, 81, 1233 Henry F. Withey

and Elsie Rathburn Withey, Biographical Dictionary of Amexican

Architects (Deceased) {los Angeles1 New Age Publishing Co., 1956), Dp.
373~374; Henry-Russell Hitchcock and William Seale, Temples of Democracy

(New Yorks Harcourt, Brace Jovanovich, 1976), pp. 236-238,

St. Iouls Globe Derocrat, "Decision on Rand Manslon To Be Debated at
Hearing," August 27, 15693 ibid, "U. City Planning Cormission Opposes
Use of Rand Mansion," August 29, 1969,




FTIMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES
1. Beuttenmuller, Doris Rose Henle. "The Granite City Steel Company:

History of an American Enterprise,” Missourd Historicsl Societw Bulletin,
Yol. X, No. 2 (Janum 195‘*), PP 135"282.

2. Bryan, John Albury. Missouri's Contribution to American Architecture.

R ey e e FE

RPRh kML I T SR

St. Louiss St. Louis Architectural Club, 1928, pp. 52, 81, & 123,
[IGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY 2+ 3 ACres N [*
QUADRANGLE NAME "Clayton, Mo." QUADRANGL.E SCALE 13 2“’-000 F
UTM REFERENCES .,:
Al]éllZBﬁlﬂ;]ZﬁlEQISHEBIJ’ BI||| 11J|||11_l!] §
ZONE EASTING NORTHING ZONE EASTlNG NORTHlNG F’
Clllllillllllltllli ol , | L1, e by L
el Lo by o) bl . Flll’l‘t-lil_‘lllllrllj

Y Sl TR e

ol Loty ] Lol Iul i Ll L et

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
lots 8, 9. 19, 11, 12 and 13, B]ock 2 University Heights Subdivision #3e

e Pk s

oA T

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPH_\IG STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

f".
y
)
]

STATE . . ' ; CODE' COUNTY . ) . CODE
Missourl - : 29 - St louls ‘ 189

STATE - . CODE . COUNTY ) E ’ CODE

fE| FORM PREPARED BY

NAME / TITLE

1. Esley Hamilton ,

ORGANIZATION _ DATE
University City Historic Preservation Comittee January, 1980

STREET & NUMBER 5 . . o . . (LEPHONE

6801 Delmaxr Blvd. 14) 862~0770

CiTY OR TOWN

University City = o : " Missourt 63130
mSTATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER CERTIFICATION

- THE EVALUATED SIGNIFICANCE OF THIS PROPERTY WITHIN THE STATE 15:
NATIONAL STATE__X,_ o LOCAL __ _
L] "

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservatlon Act of 1966 (Publtc Law 85-665). |
hereby nominate this property for inctusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated according to the
criteria and procedures set forth by the National Park Service.

STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION QFFICER SIGNATURE

nrie Director, Department of Natural Resources and - DATE
State qutomc Dr‘esm*vah_nn nﬁcww _
NPSUSEONLY .. .. @ ° T

ED iN THE NA T}ON L B‘GIiSTEH

fil KEEP ER OF THE NATIONA.L. REGISTER

(‘J-!IEF OF REG! STRAT?D

GPO 821-803




| T ...

Form Ne. 10-3002
{Hev 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR For IS oor oy
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM ==

THEQODORE LINK HISTORIC DISTRICT

CONTINUATION SHEET ] ITEM NUMBER 9 PAGE 1

3. Gill, McCune. The St. Louls Story. St. Iloulss Library of American.
Lives, 1952, Vol. 111, pp. 988=0G0.

4, Holmes, Mary Patricia. "A History and Evaluation of the St. Louis
Union Statlon, Constructed 1891-1894." Unpubl. master's thesis,
Washington University, June 1970.

5. Lecnard, John W., ed., The Book of St. louisans. 5t. Louls, The
St. louis Republie, 1906, pp. 310, 477.

6. Missouri Historical Society. Bulletin, Vol. IX, No. 2 (January 1953),
Pe 200,

. 7. Rand, Nettie Hale. Rand-Hale Strong and allied families. New York:
American Historical Company, 1940.

8+ St. louls Globe Demoérat, "Declslion on Rand Mansicn To Be Debated at
Hearing," August 27, 1969,

Qe ¢ "U. City Plamning Commission Opposes Use of Rand Mansion,"
August 29, 1969, .
10. , May 11, 1933 (obituary of Lee Niedringhaus). i
1
11, ,. December 3, 1949 (obituary of Frank Rand). k

12. St, louls Post-Dispatch, December 3, 1949 {obituary of Frank Rand).
13. St. Louis Star-Times, September 21, 1945 (obituary of Bradford Shinkle).

14, ¢+ December 3, 1649 (obituary of Frank Rand).

15, GStevens, Walter B. St. Iouis, the Fourth City. Chicagos S. J.
Clarke, 1909, pp. 4d4~44s,

16. Withey, Henry F. and Elsie Rathburm. 3Bilographical Dictionary of
Amexicnn Architects (Den-onsed). Los Angelest New Age Publishing
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